

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19 OF THE
MOUNTAIN VIEW CITY CODE RELATED TO TOWING OF
VEHICLES AND STOPPING, STANDING, AND PARKING

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN VIEW DOES HEREBY
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapter 19, Article I, Section 19.21 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.21 - Towing away of vehicles.

Any regularly employed and salaried officer of the police department of ~~this~~the city may remove or cause to be removed:

a. Any vehicle that has been parked ~~or left standing~~ upon a street, highway or public parking lot for seventy-two (72) or more consecutive hours.

b. Any vehicle obstructing the free flow of traffic on any street or in the traveling lane of any parking lot.

c. Any vehicle that is parked after signs have been erected giving notice that the parking of vehicles upon such street or portion thereof is prohibited. Such signs shall be erected in the manner required by Vehicle Code Sections 22651(l) and (m) and shall either be erected by or authorized to be erected by the city, including pursuant to an excavation or encroachment permit.

d. Any vehicle that is parked where prohibited under the city code and signs are posted giving notice of the removal.”

Section 2. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.62.2 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.62.2. - Administrative procedure for adjudication of parking citations.

All contested parking citations shall be resolved through a civil administrative procedure, with the right to an appeal to the civil division of the Santa Clara County ~~municipal Superior eCourt, Sunnyvale facility,~~ as follows:

a. **Request for initial investigation of parking citation.** If a citizen wishes to contest a parking citation issued for violation(s) of the Mountain View ~~cCity cCode,~~ he/she must request an initial investigation of the citation within twenty-one (21) days of the issuance of the citation or within ten (10) days of the mailing of a “notice of delinquent parking violation.” A request for an initial investigation may be made by writing to the Office of Parking Violations, P.O. Box ~~10591113,~~ San Jose, California, ~~951098,~~ or by calling ~~(408) 298-0736 or 1-800-367818-79771832.~~ The citizen must state the reason(s) which necessitate an initial investigation in the request.

b. **Initial investigation of parking citation by Mountain View police department.** If a citizen makes a timely request, ~~the Office of Parking Violations notifies~~ the Mountain View police department, ~~which~~ will investigate the circumstances surrounding the issuance of the citation, in view of the reasons for which the citizen requested the initial investigation. If the police department determines that the violation did not occur or that the registered owner was not responsible for the violation, the police department shall cancel the citation and make a record of the cancellation. The police department shall promptly ~~notify the Office of Parking Violations of the results of the investigation, which shall~~ mail the results of the investigation to the person who requested the initial investigation.

c. **Request for administrative review of parking citation.** If the citizen is not satisfied with the results of the investigation, ~~he/she~~ may request an administrative hearing before the parking examiner within fifteen (15) days of the date of the mailing of the results of the initial investigation by the ~~Mountain View police department~~~~Office of Parking Violations,~~ in writing. The written request for an administrative hearing must be served on the ~~oOffice of Pparking Vviolations~~ in person or by first-class mail and must state whether the citizen wishes to have an in-person hearing or a hearing by mail. If the citizen chooses a hearing by mail, he/she may submit written materials which are relevant to the grounds on which the citation is contested for consideration by the parking examiner. In order to obtain a hearing, the citizen must deposit the full amount of any parking penalty, late payment fee and any cost recovery fees due with the ~~Ooffice of Pparking Vviolations~~ at the time of requesting the hearing, unless the vehicle has been immobilized or impounded due to unpaid parking violations and will remain under the control of the Mountain View police department pending the hearing.

d. **Conduct of administrative hearing.**

1. **In-person hearing before the parking examiner.** If the citizen has filed a timely and complete request for a hearing, and deposited all fees and penalties due with the Office of Parking Violations, he/she will be notified by mail of the time, date and place of the hearing by the Office of Parking Violations. The hearing will be conducted by the parking examiner according to the guidelines set forth in the City of Mountain View parking administrative adjudication program manual. At the hearing, the citizen shall have the right to present relevant evidence and argument regarding the grounds on which the citation is contested. The officer who issued the citation need not appear at the hearing.

2. **Hearing by mail.** If the citizen chooses a hearing by mail, the parking examiner shall review any materials presented by the citizen with the request for an administrative hearing and the information set forth in the parking citation and determine whether or not the citation should be upheld.

3. **Evidentiary standard/burden of proof at administrative hearing.** Information contained on the parking citation shall be considered to establish a prima facie case that the registered owner of the vehicle committed the violation(s) shown on the citation. However, the citizen may rebut the prima facie case established by the parking citation by introducing sufficient and credible evidence that the violation did not occur or that the citation is not legally valid.

4. **Notice of decision of parking examiner.** A written notice of the decision of the parking examiner shall be delivered to the citizen in person or by first-class mail.

e. **Appeal to ~~municipal superior~~ court.** If the citizen does not agree with the decision of the parking examiner, he/she may, within twenty (20) days of the mailing or in-person delivery of the parking examiner's decision, appeal to the Santa Clara County ~~municipal superior~~ court, ~~Sunnyvale facility~~, civil division, by filing a written notice of appeal with the court, serving a copy of the notice of appeal on the Office of Parking ~~examiners~~ Violations in person or by first-class mail, and paying a filing fee to the court in ~~the an~~ amount of ~~twenty five dollars (\$25)~~ established by the court. If the citizen prevails on appeal, the ~~twenty five dollar (\$25)~~ filing fee shall be refunded to him/her. If the decision of the parking examiner is upheld, the filing fee shall be forfeited. If a timely appeal is not filed, the decision of the parking examiner shall be final."

Section 3. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.66 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.66. - Angle parking; Signs or markings indicating angle parking.

~~Whenever any ordinance or resolution of~~ By resolution adopted by the city council, the city shall designate and describe any street or portion thereof or parking lot upon which angle parking shall be permitted ~~and,~~ the city traffic engineer shall mark or sign such street, indicating the angle at which vehicles shall be parked. ~~(See Table 19.66, Angle Parking Zones.)~~

**Table 19.66
Angle Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Castro Street	Both, except where posted otherwise	California Street to El Camino Real.
Fairmont Avenue	North	Castro Street to a point 100 feet easterly.
Evelyn Avenue	North	Castro Street to a point 1,150 feet westerly.
Rock Street	South	Permanente Creek to a point 600 feet easterly.
San Luis Avenue	South	From a point 150 feet east of Burgoyne Street to a point 700 feet easterly.
Terra Bella Avenue	South	San Leandro Avenue to a point 120 feet westerly thereof.
Hope Street	East	From a point 150 feet south of the centerline of Evelyn Avenue to a point 280 feet south of Dana Street.

When signs or markings are in place indicating angle parking, as herein provided, no person shall park ~~or stand~~ a vehicle other than at the angle indicated by such signs or markings.”

Section 4. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.77 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.77. - Emergency Temporary parking signs.

a. Emergency parking signs. Whenever the chief of police or designee shall determine that ~~an~~ emergency traffic congestion is likely to result from the holding of a public or private assemblage, gatherings, functions, or for any other reason, the chief of

police, or designee, shall have power and authority to order temporary signs to be erected or posted by the director of public works, or designee, indicating that the operating or, parking ~~or standing~~ of vehicles is prohibited on such streets and alleys as the chief of police or designee shall direct during the time such temporary signs are in place. Such signs shall remain in place only during the existence of such emergency, and the chief of police or designee shall cause such signs to be removed promptly thereafter.

b. Special event, construction and other parking signs. Whenever the use of a street or portion thereof is necessary for: (1) special events authorized by the city; (2) the movement of equipment, articles or structures of unusual size; (3) the cleaning, repair or construction of a street or portion thereof; (4) the installation of underground utilities; or (5) any other purpose other than the normal flow of traffic, and the chief of police or director of public works, or their designees, finds that the parking of any vehicle on such street or portion thereof would prohibit or interfere with such use or movement, he or she, or their designee, shall authorize signs to be erected giving notice that the parking of vehicles on such street or portion thereof is prohibited. Such signs shall be erected as required by Vehicle Code Sec. 22651(l) and (m). The director of public works is authorized to permit such signage be erected pursuant to the issuance of an excavation or encroachment permit.

c. When signs authorized by the provisions of this section are in place, giving notice thereof, no persons shall operate, or park, ~~or stand~~ any vehicle contrary to the directions and provisions of said signs.”

Section 5. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.79.2 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.79.2. - Parking of certain commercial vehicles on certain streets prohibited.

No person shall park any commercial vehicle as defined in the Vehicle Code of California, or as hereafter amended, having a manufacturer’s gross vehicle weight rating of ten thousand (10,000) pounds or more on any of the streets, or portions of streets, ~~set out in Table 19.79.2, Gross Vehicle Weight~~ as set forth by resolution of the city council.

**Table 19.79.2
Gross Vehicle Weight**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Bayshore Parkway	North Side	Garcia Avenue to Salado Drive
Central Avenue	Both	From Moffett Boulevard to 350 feet easterly

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Centre Street	Both	Between Yuba Drive and State Rte. 237
Charleston Road	Both	West city limits to Bayshore Freeway
Church Street	Both	Between Yuba Drive and State Rte. 237
Coast Avenue	Both	From Marine Way to its terminus east of Marine Way
Colony Street	Both	North Rengstorff Avenue to its terminus east of Sierra Vista Avenue
El Camino Real	Both	Rengstorff to Escuela Avenue
Garcia Avenue	Both	From Bayshore Frontage Road to its terminus east of Marine Way
Independence Avenue	Both	Rock St. to Charleston Road
Leghorn Street	Both	West city limits to Sierra Vista Avenue
Marine Way	Both	From Garcia Way to Casey Avenue
Moffett Blvd.	Both	Central Expressway to West Middlefield Road
North Rengstorff Avenue	Both	Rock Street to Bayshore Freeway
Old Middlefield Way	Both	West city limits to Bayshore Freeway
Pioneer Way	Both	East Dana Street to Evelyn Avenue
Plymouth Street	Both	North Rengstorff Avenue to its terminus east of Sierra Vista Avenue
Sierra Vista Avenue	Both	Rock Street to Leghorn Street
Wyandotte Street	Both	North Rengstorff Avenue to its terminus west of Independence Avenue
Yuba Drive	Both	El Camino Real West to its terminus north of Church Street"

Section 6. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.81 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

"SEC. 19.81. - Parking prohibited on narrow streets.

At those locations set forth by resolution of the city council, ~~T~~the city traffic engineer is hereby authorized to place signs or markings indicating no parking upon any street when the width of the roadway does not exceed twenty (20) feet, or upon one

(1) side of a street as indicated by such signs or markings when the width of the roadway does not exceed thirty (30) feet.

When official signs or markings prohibiting parking are erected upon narrow streets as authorized herein, no person shall park a vehicle upon any such street in violation of any such sign or marking.”

Section 7. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.92.4 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.92.4. - Parking prohibited – Street cleaning.

a. It is unlawful for any person to stop, or park or leave any vehicle standing on a street or portion of street during those times reserved for street cleaning purposes.

b. The city ~~traffic engineer~~council shall designate by resolution any street or portion thereof where parking is prohibited for street cleaning purposes. ~~The city traffic engineer shall give notice by appropriate signs giving notice~~ of such prohibition by appropriate signage.”

Section 8. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Sections 19.93 through 19.95 of the Mountain View City Code are hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.93. - Five-hour parking zones.

It shall be unlawful to park or leave any vehicle standing for a period of time longer than five (5) hours between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the streets or parts of streets, or upon any of the public parking lots ~~set out in Table 19.93, Five-Hour Parking Zones as set forth by resolution of the city council.~~

**Table 19.93
Five-Hour Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Bush Street	East	Villa Street to West Dana Street.
Bush Street	West	Villa Street to West Dana Street.
Calderon Avenue	West	West Evelyn Avenue to Villa Street.
Corto Street	Both	Santa Rosa Avenue to Santa Clara Avenue.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Horizon Avenue	Both	Northerly boundary line of Central Expressway to a point 436 feet northerly thereof.
Santa Clara Avenue	Both	Central Expressway to Corto Street.
Santa Rosa Avenue	East	Central Expressway to Central Avenue.
Showers Drive	South	San Antonio Circle to a point 455 feet east of Pacchetti Way.
Stierlin Road	East	Central Expressway to the intersection of the northerly line of Washington Street with the easterly line of Stierlin Road.
Villa Street	North	Calderon Avenue to Bush Street.
Villa Street	South	View Street to Bush Street.
Villa Street	South	View Street to Calderon Avenue.
West Dana Street	Both	View Street to Bush Street.
West Evelyn Avenue	South	Calderon Avenue to View Street.
Madera Way	Both	West Evelyn Avenue to Villa Street

SEC. 19.93.1. - Five-hour parking zones – 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

No person shall park or leave any vehicle standing for a period of time longer than five (5) hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. of any day, upon any of the streets or parts of streets, or upon any of the public parking lots as set forth by resolution of the city council. set out in Table 19.93.1, Five-Hour Parking Zones—8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

**Table 19.93.1
Five-Hour Parking Zones—8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Rengstorff Avenue	West	Leland Avenue to a point 156 feet north of Stanford Avenue and between a point 126 feet north of Stanford Avenue and University Avenue

SEC. 19.94. - Three-hour parking zones.

It shall be unlawful to park or leave any vehicle standing for a period of time longer than three (3) hours between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the streets or parts of streets or upon any of the public parking lots as set forth by resolution of the city council. set out in Table 19.94, Three Hour Parking Zones.

**Table 19.94
Three-Hour Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Hospital Drive	Both	North Drive to South Drive.
Moffett Boulevard	East	Northerly terminus to the centerline of Jackson Street.
South Drive	North	Hospital Drive to a point 300 feet west thereof.

SEC. 19.95. - Two-hour parking zones.

a. **9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.** It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than two (2) hours between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays upon any of the streets or parts of streets or upon any of the public parking lots as set forth by resolution of the city council. set out in Table 19.95A, Two Hour Parking Zones.

b. **8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.** It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than two (2) hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. of any day except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays upon any of the streets or parts of streets as set forth by resolution of the city council. set out in Table 19.95B, Two Hour Parking Zones.

**Table 19.95A
Two-Hour Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Bryant Street	Both	California Street to Mercy Street.
Bryant Street	East	West Evelyn Avenue to California Street.
Bryant Street	West	West Evelyn Avenue to Villa Street.
California Street	South	Castro Street to Hope Street.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
California Street	Both	Castro Street to Bryant Street.
Church Street	South	Castro Street to a point 125 feet easterly therefrom.
Driveway four (4) spaces	Westerly	Church Street to south wing of City Hall, just south of the Chamber of Commerce building.
El Camino Real West	North	Showers Drive to Jordan Avenue.
Fairmont Avenue	North	Castro Street to a point 125 feet easterly therefrom.
Fairmont Avenue	South	Castro Street to Hope Street.
Franklin Street	East	Church Street to Mercy Street.
Hope Street	East	California Street to a point 225 feet northerly of West Dana Street.
Hope Street	East	West Evelyn Avenue to Villa Street.
Hope Street	West	California Street to Mercy Street.
Hope Street	West	Northerly line of Church Street to a point 140 feet northerly therefrom.
Hope Street	West	West Evelyn Avenue to a point 70 feet northerly of California Street.
Mercy Street	Both	Bryant Street to Franklin Street.
Mercy Street	South	Castro Street to Bryant Street.
Mercy Street	South	Castro Street to Hope Street.
South Drive	South	Grant Road to the westerly terminus cul-de-sac.
Thatcher Drive	Both	South Drive to southerly terminus.
View Street	East	West Evelyn Avenue to California Street.
View Street	West	West Evelyn Avenue to California Street.
Villa Street	Both	Bryant Street to Hope Street.
Villa Street	North	Bryant Street to Franklin Street.
Villa Street	North	Hope Street to View Street.
Villa Street	South	Bryant Street to a point 147 feet from the easterly boundary line of Franklin Street.
West Dana Street	Both	Bryant Street to Franklin Street.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
West Dana Street	Both	Hope Street to Bryant Street.
West Dana Street	Both	Hope Street to View Street.
West Evelyn Avenue	North	Castro Street to Franklin Street.
West Evelyn Avenue	South	Castro Street to Bryant Street.
West Evelyn Avenue	South	Castro Street to Hope Street.
West Evelyn Avenue	South	Hope Street to View Street.
Yosemite Avenue	Both	Castro Street to View Street.
City Library Parking Lot		Southeast corner of Franklin Street and Mercy Street, except by permit issued by the library services department.

**Table 19.95B
Two-Hour Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Franklin Street	West	Between Church Street and Mercy Street.
Franklin Street	Both	Between Mercy Street and California Street.
Mercy Street	Both	Between Franklin Street and Oak Street.
Miramonte Avenue	East	Between Gest Drive and the south city limits.
Yuba Drive	West	Between El Camino Real and Centre Street.
Yuba Drive	East	Between El Camino Real and a point 250 feet north thereof."

Section 9. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Sections 19.95.2 through 19.99.6 of the Mountain View City Code are hereby amended to read as follows:

"SEC. 19.95.1. - Two-hour parking zones – Three-hour no return.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than two (2) hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. of any day except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the public parking lots ~~hereinafter designated~~ designated by resolution adopted by city council. ~~Once any~~ If a vehicle has left any of the ~~below~~ designated parking lots after having been parked ~~or left standing~~ for any period of time, then ~~in that event~~ that same vehicle may not be parked ~~or left~~

~~standing~~ in that same parking lot for a period of three (3) hours from the time of its departure.

Table 19.95.1	
Two-Hour Parking Zones	
PARKING LOT	LOCATION
Parking Structure No. 1	Levels 1, 2, 3 and 4 of the parking structure fronting Bryant Street and lying between West Evelyn Avenue and Villa Street.
Lot No. 2	Fronting on Bryant Street, and lying between Villa Street and West Dana Street.
Lot No. 3	Fronting on Bryant Street, and lying between West Dana Street and California Street.
Lot No. 4	Fronting on Hope Street, and lying between West Evelyn Avenue and Villa Street.
Lot No. 5	Fronting on Hope Street, and lying between Villa Street and West Dana Street.
Lot No. 6	Fronting on Hope Street, and lying between West Dana Street and California Street.
Lot No. 7	Fronting on Hope Street and lying between California Street and Mercy Street.
Lot No. 8	Fronting on the east side of Hope Street and lying between West Evelyn Avenue and Villa Street.
Lot No. 9	Fronting on West Dana Street and lying between View Street and Hope Street.

SEC. 19.95.1.a. - Three-hour parking zones – Three-hour no return.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than three (3) hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. of any day except

Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the public parking lots designated by resolution adopted by city council~~hereinafter designated~~. ~~Once any~~If a vehicle has left any of the ~~below~~-designated parking lots after having been parked ~~or left standing~~ for any period of time, then ~~in that event~~ that same vehicle may not be parked ~~or left standing~~ in that same parking lot for a period of three (3) hours from the time of its departure.

PARKING LOT	LOCATION
Lot No. 11	The lot connecting Bryant and Franklin Streets in the block bounded by Bryant, Villa, Franklin and Dana Streets.

SEC. 19.95.2. - Two-hour parking zones – Twenty-four hours a day.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than two (2) consecutive hours upon any of the streets or parts of streets or upon any of the public parking lots as set forth by resolution of the city council. ~~set out in Table 19.95.2, Two-Hour, Twenty-Four Hour A Day Parking Zones.~~

**Table 19.95.2
Two-Hour Twenty-Four Hour A Day Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
El Camino Real	Both	Escuela Avenue to Rengstorff Avenue.

SEC. 19.96. - One-hour parking zones.

a. **9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.** It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than one (1) hour between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays upon any of the streets or parts of streets or upon any of the public parking as set forth by resolution of the city council. ~~set out in Table 19.96A, One-Hour Parking Zones.~~

**Table 19.96A
One-Hour Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION

b. **8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.** It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than one (1) hour between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays upon any of the streets or parts of streets or upon any of the public parking lots as set forth by resolution of the city council. set out in Table 19.96B, One-Hour Parking Zones.

**Table 19.96B
One-Hour Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Castro Street	Both	Evelyn Avenue to El Camino Real except those portions covered in Tables 19.99 and 19.99.1.

SEC. 19.97. - Twenty-four-minute parking zones.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than twenty-four (24) minutes between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the streets as set forth by resolution of the city council. set out in Table 19.97, Twenty-Four Minute Parking Zones.

**Table 19.97
Twenty-Four Minute Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Bryant Street	East	Mercy Street to California Street.
High School Way	North	Castro Street to a point 75 feet westerly therefrom.
Hope Street	West	Northerly line of West Dana Street to a point 75 feet northerly therefrom.
Hope Street	East	Villa Street to a point 200 feet south thereof.
Mercy Street	North	Castro Street to Bryant Street.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Terra Bella Avenue	South	San Leandro Avenue to a point 120 feet west thereof.
Villa Street	South	Franklin Street to a point 147 feet easterly from the easterly curb line of Franklin Street.

SEC. 19.98. - Twelve-minute parking zones.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ for a period of time longer than twelve (12) minutes between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Sundays and public holidays on the streets as set forth by resolution of the city council set out in Table 19.98, Twelve Minute Parking Zones.

**Table 19.98
Twelve Minute Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
West Dana Street	North	Hope Street to the public alley connecting West Dana Street and Villa Street, and lying between Castro Street and Hope Street.

SEC. 19.99. - No parking zones.

It shall be unlawful to park any vehicle at any time upon any of the streets, or ~~parts~~ parts of streets, as set forth by resolution of the city council set out in Table 19.99, No Parking Zones.

**Table 19.99
No Parking Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Bayshore Parkway	North	Garcia Avenue to San Antonio Road.
Bayshore Parkway	Southwest	Adjacent to the State of California right-of-way for Bayshore Freeway between San Antonio Road and the freeway onramp to the northwest quadrant of the North Rengstorff Avenue interchange.
Bryant Street	West	Villa Street to California Street.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
California Street	Both	San Antonio Road to 300 feet east of Showers Drive.
California Street	North	Hope Street to a point 150 feet westerly therefrom.
California Street	South	300 feet east of Showers Drive to 400 feet east of Ortega Avenue.
Castro Street	Both	Central Expressway to a point 300 feet southerly therefrom.
Castro Street	East	Miramonte Avenue to a point 500 feet northerly therefrom.
Castro Street	West	Fairmont Avenue to El Camino Real West.
Castro Street	West	Miramonte Avenue to a point 250 feet southerly of Sonia Way.
Church Street	North	Castro Street to a point 140 feet easterly therefrom.
Dale Avenue	West	Continental Circle to a point 450 feet southerly therefrom.
Driveway	West	Church Street to south wing of City Hall.
East Dana Street	North	Whisman Road to a point 440 feet easterly thereof.
East Dana Street	South	A point 150 feet east of South Whisman Road to a point 250 feet easterly thereof.
El Camino Real	North	A point 310 feet west of Grant Road to a point 350 feet east of Yuba Drive.
El Camino Real	North	A point 100 feet west of El Monte Avenue to Mariposa Avenue.
El Camino Real	North	A point 735 feet west of Rengstorff Avenue to a point 200 feet east of Rengstorff Avenue.
El Camino Real	North	Mountain View Avenue to a point 245 feet east of Miramonte Avenue.
El Camino Real	North	Hope Street to Castro Street.
El Camino Real	South	A point 265 feet west of Mountain View Avenue to a point 395 feet east of Miramonte Avenue.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
El Camino Real	South	Escuela Avenue to a point 545 feet east of El Monte Avenue.
El Camino Real	South	Bay Street to Freeway 85.
El Camino Real	South	El Monte Avenue to a point 490 feet east thereof.
Ellis Street	Both	Along its entirety.
El Monte Avenue	East	El Camino Real to Lloyd Way.
El Monte Avenue	West	Between El Camino Real and the Mountain View-Los Altos city boundary.
Fairchild Drive	North	Clyde Avenue to Leong Drive.
Fairchild Drive	South	For 120 feet westerly and 50 feet easterly of the main Fairchild driveway located approximately 485 feet easterly of North Whisman Road.
Fairmont Avenue	North	Hope Street to a point 110 feet westerly therefrom.
Grant Road	West	Sleeper Avenue to south city limits.
Grant Road	East	Sleeper Avenue to Waverly Place.
High School Way	South	Castro Street to a point 150 feet west therefrom.
Leong Drive	West	Fairchild Drive to a point 215 feet southerly of Winston Place.
Logue Avenue	Both	Southern Pacific Railroad crossing to the northerly terminus of Logue Avenue.
Mayfield Avenue	East	Central Expressway to a point 245 feet northerly therefrom.
Mayfield Avenue	West	Central Expressway to Whitney Drive.
Mayfield Avenue	Both	A point 650 feet east of the centerline of Moffett Boulevard to a point 510 feet west of the centerline of Easy Street.
Miramonte Avenue	East	The centerline of Harpster Drive to a point approximately 570 feet north of said centerline.
Miramonte Avenue	East	A point 100 feet north of Hans Avenue to Castro Street.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Moffett Boulevard	West	Central Expressway to a point 170 feet south of Jackson Street.
Moorpark Way	Both	Sylvan Avenue to Evelyn Avenue.
Moorpark Way	Both	Dana Street to Evelyn Avenue.
Nita Avenue	Both	West city limit line to a point 300 feet easterly therefrom.
North Drive	Both	Grant Road to a point 530 feet westerly therefrom.
North Shoreline Boulevard	Both	Villa Street to the northerly terminus.
Phyllis Avenue	North	Grant Road to a point 750 feet westerly.
San Antonio Road	Both	Central Expressway to El Camino Real West.
South Rengstorff Avenue	East	The centerline of Latham Street to a point 340 feet north thereof.
South Rengstorff Avenue	West	A point 200 feet north of the centerline of Latham Street to a point 300 feet north of the centerline of Latham Street.
South Rengstorff Avenue	East	A point 320 feet north of University Avenue to a point 270 feet south of California Street.
South Rengstorff Avenue	West	University Avenue to a point 370 feet south of California Street.
South Rengstorff Avenue	Both	Between El Camino Real and Latham Street.
South Shoreline Boulevard	East	El Camino Real West to a point 60 feet northerly therefrom.
South Whisman Road	Both	Ferry-Morse Way to East Dana Street.
Stierlin Road	North	North Shoreline Boulevard to a point 300 feet easterly therefrom.
West Evelyn Avenue	North	Castro Street to View Street.
West Evelyn Avenue	South	Franklin Street to a point 510 feet westerly therefrom.

SEC. 19.99.1. - No stopping zones.

It shall be unlawful to stop or stand any vehicle at any time upon any of the streets, or parts of streets, ~~as set forth by resolution of the city council.~~~~set out in Table 19.99.1, No Stopping Zones.~~

**Table 19.99.1
No Stopping Zones**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Alta Avenue	Both	Plymouth Street to Charleston Road.
Amphitheatre Parkway	North	Along its entirety.
Amphitheatre Parkway	South	Charleston Road to a point 1,000 feet easterly therefrom.
Amphitheatre Parkway	South	Shoreline Boulevard to a point 500 feet westerly therefrom.
Bush Street	Both	Villa Street to West Evelyn Avenue.
Castro Street	East	California Street to a point 270 feet southerly therefrom.
Castro Street	Both	Mercy Street to a point 360 feet southerly therefrom.
Castro Street	East	Yosemite Avenue to a point 240 feet northerly therefrom.
Castro Street	West	High School Way to a point 155 feet northerly therefrom.
Charleston Road	Both	Amphitheatre Parkway to the easterly terminus.
Crittenden Lane	Both	North Shoreline Boulevard to its easterly terminus.
Cuesta Drive	North	Grant Road to Gretel Lane.
Dana Street	Both	From a point 900 feet east of Calderon Avenue to a point 1,500 feet east of Calderon Avenue.
El Camino Real	North	700 feet east of Sylvan Avenue to State Route 85.
El Camino Real	North	Showers Drive to a point 800 feet west of San Antonio Road.
El Camino Real	South	State Route 85 to a point 150 feet east of Dale Avenue.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Grant Road	West	El Camino Real to Phyllis Avenue.
Grant Road	East	El Camino Real to the centerline prolongation of Oak Lane.
Huff Avenue	West	Plymouth Street to Charleston Road.
Huff Avenue	East	Plymouth Street to a point 780 feet northerly therefrom.
Joaquin Road	East	Plymouth Street to Charleston Road.
Joaquin Road	West	Plymouth Street to a point 820 feet northerly therefrom.
Miramonte Avenue	East	Cuesta Drive to Gest Drive.
Miramonte Avenue	West	Cuesta Drive to Rose Avenue.
Plymouth Street	Both	Alta Avenue to North Shoreline Boulevard.
San Antonio Road	East	The centerline of Bayshore Freeway to a point 150 feet north thereof of said centerline.
Showers Drive	East	240 feet north of El Camino Real to California Street.
Showers Drive	West	El Camino Real to California Street.
North Shoreline Boulevard	Both	Bayshore Freeway to Shoreline Gatehouse.
Sylvan Avenue	East	Moorpark Way to 100 feet north of Dana Street.
Villa Street	North	Bush Street to View Street.

SEC. 19.99.2. - No parking zone – 2:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. of any day except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays upon any of the streets or parts of streets as set forth by resolution of the city council.~~set out in Table 19.99.2, No-Parking Zones – 2:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.~~

Table 19.99.2
No-Parking Zones—2:00 to 7:00 p.m.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Middlefield Road	North	Old Middlefield Way to State Highway 237.
Middlefield Road	South	Old Middlefield Way to State Highway 237.

SEC. 19.99.3. - No parking zone – Middlefield Road-Crittenden School Athletic Park.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle **standing** on the north side of Middlefield Road immediately adjacent to Crittenden School Athletic Park between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. of any day except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays when appropriate signs prohibiting such parking are displayed. The city traffic engineer is authorized to cover such signs and permit parking in said area when major special occasions at Crittenden School Athletic Park require such on-street parking.

SEC. 19.99.4. - No parking zones near schools.

a. **Mountain View High School ~~V~~vicinity.** It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ between 8:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. when school is in session in the areas as set forth by resolution of the city council.~~set out in Table 19.99.4.a, No-Parking Zones—Mountain View High School Vicinity.~~

Table 19.99.4.a
No-Parking Zones Near Schools—8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.

STREET	SIDE OF STREET	PORTION
Andre Avenue	Both	Entire length
Bruckner Circle	Both	Entire length
Bryant Avenue	North	Truman Avenue to Ivan Avenue
Truman Avenue	West	Andre Avenue to Blue Lake Square

b. **Mariano Castro Elementary School ~~V~~vicinity.** It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ between 7:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon to 4:00 p.m. when school is in session in the areas as set forth by resolution of the city council.~~set out in Table 19.99.4.b, No-Parking Zones—Mariano Castro Elementary School Vicinity.~~

Table 19.99.4.b

No Parking Zones Near Schools—7:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon to 4:00 p.m.

STREET	SIDE OF STREET	PORTION
Toft Street	West	Entire length

SEC. 19.99.5. - No parking zone – 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. of any day except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays upon any of the streets or parts of street as set forth by resolution of the city council.~~set out in Table 19.99.5, No Parking Zones—7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.~~

Table 19.99.5

No Parking Zones—7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Bryant Avenue	Both	Grant Road to 140 feet west of Churin Drive.
Bryant Avenue	North	140 feet west of Churin Drive to 130 feet east of Shady Spring Lane.
Bryant Avenue	North	250 feet west of Truman Avenue to 150 feet west of Truman Avenue.
Phyllis Avenue	East	El Camino Real to Pamela Drive.

SEC. 19.99.6. - No parking of vehicles over six feet in height.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave standing~~ any vehicle exceeding six (6) feet in height at any time upon any of the streets, or parts of street ~~set out in Table 19.99.6, No Parking Zones—Height Limitations~~ as set forth by resolution of the city council.

Table 19.99.6

No Parking Zones—Height Limitations

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
El Camino Real	South	Clark Avenue to a point 150 feet west of Clark Avenue.”

Section 10. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.99.9 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

“SEC. 19.99.9. - Parking – Restricted.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave standing~~ any vehicle whose occupant(s) do not have police, fire or city business at the locations ~~set out in Table 19.99.9, Parking – Restricted.~~ set forth by resolution of the city council.”

Section 11. Chapter 19, Article VIII, Section 19.99.11 of the Mountain View City Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

SEC. 19.99.11. - No parking zone – 8:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m.

It shall be unlawful to park ~~or leave~~ any vehicle ~~standing~~ between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. of any day, including Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays upon any of the streets or parts of streets ~~set out in Table 19.99.11, No Parking Zones – 8:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m.~~ as set forth by resolution of the city council.

**Table 19.99.11
No-Parking Zones – 8:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m.**

STREET	SIDES OF STREET	PORTION
Huff Avenue	East	Charleston Road to a point 720 feet southerly therefrom.
Joaquin Road	West	Charleston Road to a point 660 feet southerly therefrom.”

Section 13. The provisions of this ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days from and after the date of its adoption.

Section 14. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the other remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared unconstitutional.

Section 15. Pursuant to Section 522 of the Mountain View City Charter, it is ordered that copies of the foregoing proposed ordinance be posted at least two (2) days prior to its adoption in three (3) prominent places in the City and that a single publication be made to the official newspaper of the City of a notice setting forth the

title of the ordinance, the date of its introduction, and a list of the places where copies of the proposed ordinance are posted.

Section 16. This ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations) (the activity will not result in a direct or reasonable foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly).

LK/7/ORD
014-08-09-18o-so